Public Document Pack

An Extraordinary Meeting of the OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE will be held at
the Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on
TUESDAY 17 MAY 2016 AT 7.30 PM

Andy Couldrick
Chief Executive
Published on 9 May 2016

This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social
and economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business
growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services
The Underpinning Principles

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and
fuel efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Councillors
Tim Holton (Chairman)
UllaKarin Clark
John Jarvis
Ken Miall
Substitutes
Laura Blumenthal
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Michael Firmager (ViceChairman)
Kate Haines
Norman Jorgensen
Malcolm Richards

Prue Bray

Lindsay Ferris

Abdul Loyes

Pauline Helliar-Symons
Dianne King
Shahid Younis

SUBJECT

77.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence

78.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

79.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions
A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of this committee.
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

80.
81.

81.1

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any Member questions.
None Specific

CALL-IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION - EVENING,
SUNDAY AND SHUTE END CHARGES
To consider the Call-In of the Executive decision to
introduce evening and Sunday charges for Wokingham
Borough Council car parks and charges for the Shute
End Council offices car park.
Background
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, five nonExecutive Members of the Council have submitted a

PAGE
NO.

formal notice “calling in” the Executive decision to
introduce evening, Sunday and Shute End car park
charges.
The full decision made by the Executive was as
follows:
Decision:
1) That approval be given to the permanent making of
the Wokingham Borough Council (Various OffStreet Borough Car Parks) (Variation (2)) Order
2016;
2) That Officers be instructed to amend signage and
equipment in the car parks;
3) That those who have responded to the
consultation be informed accordingly.
The decision has been called in on the following
grounds:
1) The decision has contravened Section 1.4.2 a) of
the Council’s Constitution, in that the action being
proposed is not proportionate to the desired
outcome. A blanket charge is proposed for all car
parks except one, no matter what their location or
usage;
2) The decision has contravened Section 1.4.2 b) of
the Council’s Constitution, in that due consultation
has not occurred. Consultation was on the tariff,
not on the principle. No specific consultation with
potentially affected businesses, organisations or
individuals seems to have taken place.
Additionally, professional advice appears only to
have been provided by Highways Officers, not
from those working in other areas which may have
been impacted by the decision;
3) The decision has contravened Section 1.4.2 d) of
the Council’s Constitution, in that openness has
not been observed. There was no warning about
the proposal prior to the consultation on the level
of the charges;
4) The decision has contravened Section 1.4.2 e) of
the Council’s Constitution, in that clarity of aims
and desired outcomes has not been achieved.
During the course of the Executive meeting it was
suggested that the charges would not be

introduced in Woodley and daytime charges would
be introduced instead. But the recommendations
were voted through unchanged. There is no
supporting evidence to demonstrate whether or
how the aim to raise more revenue will be
achieved.

81.2

5) The decision has contravened Section 1.4.2 f) of
the Council’s Constitution, in that only one option
has been presented and no details of any other
options considered have been presented.
Reference Information for Consideration by the
Committee
1) A copy of the Call-In notice and supporting
information;

7 - 34

2) Report on Evening, Sunday and Shute End

Charges, considered by the Executive on 31
March 2016. Note: the report includes an
Appendix containing the responses to the public
consultation. Due to the size of this Appendix it
is not included in the Agenda but can be found
on the Council’s website or is available on
request from Democratic Services.
3) Extract from the Draft Executive Minutes for 31

March 2016 including public questions relating
to the issue;
4) Additional information on the Council’s financial

position and two witness statements;
5) Briefing Paper by the Director of Environment

on the issues raised by the Call-In;
6) Summary of Car Parks Income and

81.3

82.

Expenditure.
List of Witnesses and Indicative Timetable
A list of witnesses and an indicative timetable for the
meeting.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee consider the Call-In and either:
a)

Confirm the decision of the Executive, or

b)

Recommend that the decision be reconsidered by
the Executive, setting out the nature of its
concerns.

35 - 36

83.

Neil Carr
Tel
Email
Postal Address

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN
DECIDES ARE URGENT

CONTACT OFFICER
Principal Democratic Services Officer
0118 974 6058
neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 81.2

7

8

9

10

11

This page is intentionally left blank

TITLE

Evening, Sunday and Shute End Charges

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

The Executive on 31 March 2016

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Heather Thwaites, Director of Environment

LEAD MEMBER

John Kaiser, Executive Member for Highways and
Planning

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
These proposed charges will ensure that the council’s off street car parks provide a best
value return on the asset.
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Executive:
1)
approve the permanent making of The Wokingham Borough Council (Various offstreet Borough Car Parks) (Variation (2)) Order 2016);
2)

Instruct officers to amend signage and equipment in the car parks;

3)

inform those who have responded to the consultation accordingly.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
This report summarises the Sunday and evening car parking charges proposed,
responds to the objections from the consultation on these proposals, and recommends a
decision to the Executive.

13

Background
The principle of charging for car park use is well established. The Council currently
charges users in most of the car parks it operates with those charges applying between
the hours of 8am and 6pm, Monday to Saturday. The Council is increasingly under
pressure to generate new streams of income in order to support services. The
proposals for evening and weekend charging will generate additional income and brings
Wokingham car park charging regime in to line with many other authorities locally.
For the car parks listed below, a £1.00 charge for parking Sunday and bank holidays all
day (8am-6pm) and Monday to Sunday, nightly (6pm-8am). All car parks below have a
Nightly Season Tickets (6pm-8am) for 12 months of £292, apart from School Lane,
Wargrave, which has a residents parking scheme in place.
• Cockpit Path
• Easthampstead Road East
• Easthampstead Road West
• Crockhamwell Road
• Headley Road
• Denmark Street
• School Lane, Wargrave
• Station Road, Earley
• Lytham Road East
• Lytham Road West
• Polehampton Close East, Twyford
• Polehampton Close East, West
• Shute End Council Offices
• The Paddocks
• Carnival Pool
• Rose Street
• Winnersh Triangle.
In addition, the following charges shall apply to The Shute End Council offices car park
on Saturdays between 8:00am and 6:00pm (excluding bank holidays):
• 70p up to 1 hour;
• £1.20 up to 2 hours;
• £2.00 up to 4 hours;
• £3.00 up to 6 hours;
• £4.00 up to 10 hours.
For all car parks, the unladen weight limit has increased from 30 cwt to 3000kg. In all
other respects, the charges listed in the car parks shall continue to apply in addition to
those that appear above.
Analysis of Issues
A public consultation on the above proposal was held from 13 January 2016 until 5
February 2016. Notices were placed in each car park and advertisements appeared in
both local papers. In addition, letters were sent to each town and parish council as well
as the Wokingham and Woodley Town Centre Management Initiatives. All ward
members were also informed of the proposals and consultation. Consultation
responses were made on the council’s website. Responses which came in writing were
also added to the consultation. The responses to the consultation can be seen in

14

Appendix A. [Due to the size of this Appendix it is not included in the agenda but can
be found on the Council’s website or is available on request from Democratic Services.]
Most responses to the consultation were against the proposals. The objections and
responses are summarised in this section. Appendix A, which shows the objections,
refers to the numbered responses below.
1 – Safety impact
Safety concerns were raised regarding women using the car parks to pay at night.
Although the fear of crime is understandable, the council’s crime figure analysis, in
conjunction with Thames Valley Police shows that crime, even in the council car parks,
is very low. With the introduction of these charges, trained enforcement officers will
now patrol the car parks during the evening, ensuring that an even higher level of safety
is maintained.
2 - On street parking impact
Car users who wish to avoid the charges in the council car parks may choose to park on
street. Whilst this parking is an acceptable alternative if done so legally, illegal parking
may inconvenience residents. The council has been given approval by the Executive to
apply to parliament for the powers to undertake on-street parking enforcement. Until
these powers are granted, the council will continue to work with the police to ensure
illegal parking is addressed.
3 – Resident impact
The evening charges will have an impact on residents who do not have private parking
availability at their residence and choose to use council car parks. Parking is not a right
that the council provides for each residence and the provision of where to park a vehicle
must be a factor when choosing a place to live. Through planning work, the council
aims to provide different types of accommodation to the population to account for
different needs. The proximity to amenities and public transport is part of the attraction
in leaving near a town centre, even at the detriment of private car owner’s ability to have
reserved parking for their vehicle. The council has offered an overnight season ticket as
part of these proposals to address this concern.
For some residents, the cost of parking may be prohibitive. Adult and children’s
services run by the council can give advice as to individual circumstances.
4 – Social impact
Various community groups concerned by the impact on their organisations were
mentioned in the responses to the consultation. These include theatre groups,
community centres, car-boots/markets, sporting activities in local parks, libraries, after
school clubs, major events, and centres of religious worship. Although the
circumstances of each organisation varies, all bring a sense of purpose to their
constituents and to the wider community. Whilst the council recognises this
contribution, the car parking asset must generate value for money to the council in order
to support the transport goals of the council as well as other valuable services that the
council provides to the community. The land value of the car parks must also be
considered when operating a parking service. In order to provide off-street parking that
balances the needs of the multiple users of the council’s services, charges must be
established in order to provide value for money.

15

5 – Business impact
Among the businesses that residents felt may be negatively impacted by the proposals
were take-aways, restaurants, bars, retailers, traders, banks/cash points, fitness/health
classes, doctor surgeries, and pharmacies. The charges are proposed so that the
provision for off-street parking can remain and be sustainable to support the customers
of these businesses in the future. Benchmarking with neighbouring borough councils
show that similar charges are in place in other districts, often at higher values that those
set out in this proposal.
6 – Community impact
Concerns on the impact of the proposals on the vibrancy of the borough’s town centres
were raised in the consultation. Whilst some individuals may choose not to use the
town centre car parks during the hours of the new proposals, the risk of impact on
parking is minimal compared to other factors, many of which are addressed through the
works of town centre regeneration and other similar projects. Parking studies have
shown a steady year-on-year increase in the use of all of the borough’s car parks. With
many new residents moving to the borough, this trend is expected to continue and the
council is preparing projects to address the future parking needs of the area.
7 – Financial viability
Concerns were raised within the consultation as to the financial viability of this scheme.
In generating these proposals, the cost of enforcement was considered. If the
proposals gain approval, the implementation of the proposals will be carefully monitored
in order to ensure value for money is achieved. The proposed revenue savings will
ensure that the transport aims of the council can be achieved. The off-street parking
service is a non-statutory service that provides a valuable asset to the community and is
part of the council’s transport asset.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

(£150k)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

(£150k)

Yes

Revenue

(£150k)

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
None
Cross-Council Implications
None

16

List of Background Papers
See Appendix A
Contact Alison Dray
Telephone No 0118 974 3727
Date 18 March 2016

Service Environment
Email alison.dray@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 2

17

This page is intentionally left blank

EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE EXECUTIVE
HELD ON 31 MARCH 2016 FROM 7.30 PM TO 8.45 PM

Committee Members Present
Councillors: Keith Baker (Chairman), Julian McGhee-Sumner, Charlotte Haitham Taylor,
Pauline Jorgensen, John Kaiser, Philip Mirfin, Anthony Pollock and Angus Ross
Other Councillors Present
Mark Ashwell
Prue Bray
Norman Jorgensen
Malcolm Richards
121. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Chairman invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.
121.1 Chas Hockin asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Bearing in mind the error in stating the reason for raising the car park charges, what
confidence do I have in knowing that the council has made an accurate estimate of the
numbers of people parking their cars in council car parks in the evenings and weekends?
What figures did they use, how did they go about the assessment etc. I would like to see
the figures that were used. (I am not against raising charges, but I am against raising
charges in the evenings).
Answer
An evening and Sunday parking survey was carried out in late February 2016, which
counted the usage of each of the car parks on a 2 hourly basis from 7pm-11pm Saturday
evening and 6am-6pm on Sunday. The data was used to estimate the income from the
proposed charges.
Evening charging is based on 10% of the average daily usage and Sunday charging is
based on 50% of the average daily usage. Inevitably any income forecasts are an estimate
as we cannot always accurately predict how users will respond. However from our
experience of other charging changes we reflect that by putting in an element of resistance
normally in our forecasts of around 10%.
Supplementary Question
Bearing in mind that in the responses listed to the objections you mentioned several issues
and these are all cost related. You talk about the introduction of Parking Enforcement
Officers, surely that is going to be a cost that will negate any profit that you make from
raising the charges. Then you talk about on-street parking enforcement, that is obviously
going to involve a cost to the detriment of any profit that you are going to make.
From my own personal aspect I think you have underestimated the social impact that you
are going to have on raising these charges. I use the Woodley Town Council Oakwood

19

Centre and we get on very well with the Council there. I am a member of the Woodley
Photographic Club and increasing the charges, not only with us but for other clubs, could
have a detrimental effect on our usage of the premises and the attendance that we get.
So I would like you to reconsider your proposal to introduce evening and Sunday charges
and make it an increase in the daily rate.
Supplementary Answer
I understand what you are saying Mr Hockin. I have a number of other questions to
answer and one of them does involve the car park in Woodley.
We have to make some pretty difficult decisions because of the cuts that we have had to
take into the Council. We have had a large number of responses to the consultation and if
somebody comes up with something that could supplement that or replace that income
that we are likely to lose going forward we would always listen to it and I think you will hear
as I answer some of the other questions that we have listened to the consultation and so I
would ask you to bear with me and listen to the other questions.
121.2 Richard Dolinski asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Woodley Town Council, The Town Centre Management Initiative (TCMI) and local
business owners are very concerned that introducing a flat rate fee of £1 for Sundays and
after 6pm in the evening will not achieve the additional income required from Woodley’s
car parks to balance WBC’s books and deter visitors to the town centre. Recognising that
additional income is required the Town Council and the TCMI suggested in its consultation
response that it would be better to increase the hourly parking charge that has been frozen
for many years under a Conservative led council from 70p an hour to 80p. This has
multiple benefits in that the income from this approach would be extremely higher than the
new evening and Sunday charges and is more acceptable to Woodley residents and
businesses and demonstrates you have acted upon a consultation response. Would the
lead Member support this for Woodley, in consideration of the concerns of businesses and
the fear of those living in the town centre that drivers would simply park in residential
roads?
Answer
An evening and Sunday parking survey was carried out in late February 2016, which
counted the usage of each car park on a 2 hourly basis from 7pm-11pm Saturday
evenings and 6am-6pm on Sundays. This data was used to estimate the income from the
proposed charges and this was then compared with an estimate of income from increasing
the hourly charge by 10p. The data showed that the evening and Sunday charges are
most likely to increase revenue beyond what would be raised by increasing the hourly
charge by 10p.
However I understand that there is an opportunity to be flexible about the car park
charging regime across the Borough and there is no specific reason for absolute
consistency in the charging structure; horses for courses basically. On this basis I am
prepared to trial an increase in hourly charging in Woodley car parks in lieu of the evening
and Sunday charging.
We will monitor this over the next 12 months and compare it with the income generated in
other areas with a view to reviewing the overall charging regime at the end of the 2016/17
financial year.

20

121.4 Peter Must asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
The objections raised to the introduction of a £1 charge for evening, Sunday and Bank
holiday use of Council car parks must be unique in coming from every sector of the local
community: commercial and retail businesses, stall holders, events organisers, disability
groups, heritage organisations and residents; leaving one to wonder what it takes, in a
month where the Chancellor of the Exchequer has abandoned proposed cuts to PIPs
because of public discontent, for the public of this Borough to persuade the Council not to
proceed with a measure that is so widely opposed, so can Councillors please listen to the
people and find some other means to raise this revenue?
Since you say if you can come up with any other suggestions please let us know can I
assume that you will actually be allowing time before the implementation of these
proposals if you do go ahead for those suggestions to come forward?
Answer
We did receive around 400 responses to the proposals for introducing evening and
weekend parking and the vast majority were opposed to the introduction of charges and
very few did suggest an alternative as we have seen for Woodley who did come forward
with an alternative. All of these responses were read, and we did read all 400 of them, and
considered in light of the pressure on the Council to find additional income and make
savings.
All car parking income is used to fund the upkeep and improvement of the Council’s road
network. The cost of this service is largely dependent upon the cost of materials used, and
of course they have all gone up in cost but the main is the cuts that we are actually
enjoying; I guess you could describe it as that from the Government. Without finding
additional income there are services that we would have to cut and those services would
fall in a lot of cases on the weaker section of the population and would lead to a
deterioration of the Borough’s road network.
I did not come into this job to put up the prices, I am a Conservative, and I did not come
into this to cut services to the most vulnerable. We are placed in a fairly difficult situation
but I will take your recommendation away and discuss that with my colleagues with
regards to what we do but please understand every month that ticks by means that money
is not available for us to spend on the most vulnerable people who are in the Borough.
Supplementary Question
Can we be quite clear whether it is £1 for the limits of parking whether it is two hours or
three hours that are normally imposed which is what I have been told by the Regeneration
Team that a £1 will buy you two hours or three hours or whether it is a £1 for the whole
period between the normal closure of the day time regime or the Sunday regime? Is it just
£1 for the whole period or is it £1 for three hours, four hours or two hours?
Supplementary Answer
I am told it is £1 for the whole thing.

21

121.5 Keith Malvern asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
The Vision for the Borough is 'a great place to live, an even better place to do business'
and that is followed in the Vision by needing to facilitate the regeneration of our towns.
When Wokingham Town Council made their comments on the proposed parking charges
they believed that '...with the regeneration of the town under way, this is not the right time
to implement additional (parking) charges'.
Recognising that these proposed charges would have an impact on the regeneration what
discussions have you had with Executive Member for Regeneration and the Regeneration
Team about this?
Answer
The Regeneration Team and the Highways Team have to work very closely together, they
work glove in hand as you can probably imagine and I am told by Matt Davey in Highways
that he has spoken to the Head of Regeneration and he does not believe that this will have
any impact on the regeneration of the town. In fact it would have a lot less impact than
putting up the overall prices because of course the bulk of the business in the town is done
during the day.
The regeneration of Wokingham Town will make it a more attractive destination and it is
expected visitors will spend more time in the town during the day, at weekends and in the
evenings. Daytime car parking charges in Wokingham Town have remained unchanged
for several years and the day time charges again will remain unchanged this year. On
balance the Council believes that the very small charge for parking all night and all day on
Sunday will not have a negative impact on the attractiveness of the town as a destination.
Supplementary Question
Can I start by referring to your goodself as the Leader of the Council. You have said that
“it is with deep regret that the Council has been forced to make these proposals”. I would
like to reassure yourself the Council has decided to make these proposals nobody has
forced you to do it.
The advantage of any consultation, and we have had a consultation that has already been
referred to with more than 400 responses, is that you are able to explain why you need it
and you are able to explain what the likely revenue will be. This is somewhat difficult as
you have explained today you have only recently done a survey of usage on Sundays.
Never mind we move on. What alternatives have been considered and what can you see
coming down the track?
Nowhere in the consultation document will you read anything about what alternatives have
been considered. For example: trying to find more space in existing car parks particularly
popular ones; increasing the current charges which have been referred to; increasing the
subsidised charges for staff and Councillors and marketing initiatives. Luckily you have
had some good feedback from hundreds of customers who have given their time freely to
suggest alternatives; even I have suggested alternatives to you including the ones I have
just mentioned. I will ask you whether you will take this opportunity to defer these charges.
You referred to something happening in Woodley, but I couldn’t hear what you were saying
because you do not speak loudly enough. Whether you want to defer these Wokingham

22

changes until at least after the Station car park development has been completed and use
the time to have a proper look at the helpful customer feedback you have already had?
Supplementary Answer
I would just reiterate that every minute, every hour, every day that goes by where we don’t
make these charges it puts huge pressures on other services in the Council and some of
these services fall on the most vulnerable people in the Borough and as I said I did not
come in to carry this role out either to increase prices or to take services away from the
most vulnerable in the Borough.
Somewhere we have to decide that prices go up. I am sure Keith would like to tell you
about the six months we spent talking about the budget at our Group meetings, examining
everything even in micro detail and I would suggest that this is one of the things we need
to do to generate the income to make sure the fabric of our roads continue to at least not
deteriorate more than they have already.
The Leader of Council stated the following: The one comment I would say to you in terms
of our pressure is just take Adult Social Care, which I am sure every one of us does not
want to have reduced. Our growth just to stand still for next year is £2.4m. Put that in
context 2% council tax rise is £1.6m so we still have to find £800k just to stand still so a
contribution for this for repairing potholes etc has to be the way forward.
124. EVENING, SUNDAY AND SHUTE END CHARGES
The Executive considered a report setting out proposed Sunday and evening car parking
charges which will ensure that the Council’s off street car parks generate additional
income and bring the Wokingham car park charging regime into line with many other
authorities locally.
The Executive Member for Planning and Highways advised the meeting that the purpose
of the report was to give authority to put the traffic orders in place to enable the
implementation of the evening, Sunday and Shute End charges. Councillor Kaiser
reminded Members that he had stated earlier in the meeting that the Council would be
looking at variations to the proposals and would be mindful of suggestions put forward. He
reiterated the financial difficulties the Council was facing which had been one of the
reasons the proposals were necessary.
As set out in the report it was clarified that the proposals were for a £1.00 charge for
parking all day (8am-6pm) on Sundays and bank holidays and Monday to Sunday nights
(6pm-8am).
Councillor Mirfin queried when it was planned to have pay on exit at Council car parks and
signage at the entrances to all the Borough’s towns to show the availability of spaces?
Councillor Kaiser stated that consideration would be given to these proposals; however
financial implications also had to be considered. Councillor Pauline Jorgensen however
requested assurance that the Council would not be spending more on car park barriers
than was being made from car parking. A number of councils already used “RingGo” (a
cashless parking solution) and that system, in conjunction with spot enforcement, could
save money on capital outlay.
RESOLVED That:

23

1)

approval be given to the permanent making of The Wokingham Borough Council
(Various Off-Street Borough Car Parks) (Variation (2)) Order 2016);

2)

Officers be instructed to amend signage and equipment in the car parks;

3)

those who have responded to the consultation be informed accordingly.

24

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee – Call-In - 17 May 2016
Additional Information and Two Witness Statements

Graham Ebers, Director of Finance and Resources
Members asked for a contextual note on the financial challenges facing the Council over
the next four years. Graham Ebers, Director of Finance and Resources provided the
following briefing:
“The Council will be facing grant cuts of approximately £20m over the next 4 years and
service cost pressures of up to £4m per annum, providing a cumulative challenge in the
region of £36m which will have to be met through increases in income and/or reductions to
the resources available for service delivery”.

Witness Statement - Chas Hockin, Woodley Photographic Club
Chas Hockin asked a question about the new car park charges at the Executive meeting
on 31 March 2016. Mr Hockin was invited to attend the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee as a witness but was unable to do so. Mr Hockin has submitted
the following written statement instead:
“If Wokingham Borough Council has to bring in increased car parking charges within the
Borough, me and my colleagues in the Woodley Photographic Club – and I suspect other
clubs – would prefer that the daily rate of charges is increased, rather than the evening
and Sunday rate. This will have less impact on our activities, and will keep the club going”.
Witness Statement – Keith Malvern
History
Back in July last year, a front page article in the Daily Telegraph had the then “High Street
Minister” urging Councils to allow shoppers to park for free and not to use parking fines as
a way of generating income. So, naturally, Councils across the country decided to increase
charges or levy charges on a 24/7 basis. Hence the suggestion of evening and Sunday
charges.
When Wokingham BC did its Budget consultation in November/December, ideas to
generate income included evening and Sunday charges. At the Budget consultation events
various views were expressed (pro and con) but it was agreed that these would be
considered further. Unfortunately, although the News Release about the Budget
consultation was issued on 14 December, the link to the part that dealt with Environmental
issues (including parking) wasn’t in place until 20 January 2016.
Proposal
John Kaiser issued a press release to start the public consultation (due to run from 13
January to 5 February) in which he said that he knew that some people would be upset
about it, but he said that they had done benchmarking and other authorities charged for

25

evening and Sunday parking. It could be said in passing that not all authorities charge at
these times and some have free parking after 3pm on Saturdays – there are many
variations.
If you are doing anything that is controversial it is always good to ensure that the obvious
questions are answered. Questions such as:


How much income will each part of any proposal (evening, Sundays and Shute End)
generate in a year?



What surveys have been done to establish how many people use the car parks at this
time anyway?



Are there other ways of raising this revenue, e.g. increasing charges per period, trying
to create more spaces in existing car parks, reopening old car parks (e.g. the one
adjacent to the old Wellington House), increasing the all-day charge at car parks close
to the station so that it is closer to the daily rate of £7.50 that the station car park
charges, restricting Saturday parking at Shute End to 2 hours so that it can truly be a
shoppers car park, etc, etc.

Response
When I tried to clarify what benchmarking had been done I got a reply from Matt Davey
(Head of Highways) which said: “…benchmarking was not to determine whether to charge
or not as this principle had already been established”. It is difficult to have a valid public
consultation on an issue when the Head of Highways thinks that the principle of evening
and Sunday charges had been established. Where did he get that idea from?
I asked a question at an Executive earlier this year, asking the relevant Executive Member
“…how much more money does he want from us with his proposed car parking charges in
the evening and Sunday?” On being told that it was £150k, I said that that is about £1 per
person in Wokingham and handed over my pound. I wasn’t expecting a huge public
response of people donating a pound, but what I was hoping for was a chance for him to
stop and think about what he was doing and what other ways he could get the revenue.
The consultation resulted in hundreds of comments raising a number of issues. All of the
comments were dismissed in one of seven ways and no comments were considered
worthy of investigation.
The comments and the decision relating to them were due to be reported to an Individual
Executive Member Decision meeting to be held on 16 February. I intended to attend but 30
minutes before it was due to start I was contacted to tell me that the issue would not be
taken as it was not within the competence of an IEMD meeting. It was decided that the
issue would be discussed at the Executive on 31 March.
Shute End Car Park Sign
Before the Executive meeting someone decided (on Friday 11 March) to remove the sign
advertising free parking on Saturdays at the Shute End car park. Who did that? Why did
they do it? I have asked a number of people and nobody can tell me. Has someone tried to
suppress that information? The best anyone could come up with was that it was to avoid
confusion. What confusion? Can I ask both the Chief Executive and the current Leader of

26

the Council to say what they know and explain how something can happen and nobody
can say who did it?
Executive – 31 March
When the parking proposals came back to the Executive on 31 March, the Executive
Member for Planning and Highways said publicly (for the first time) that surveys on car
park usage had taken place at the end of February - well after the consultation period.
The Leader of the Council (who also seems to be Leader of Woodley Town Council)
suggested in answer to a question that parking ought to be “horses for courses” and
attempted to propose that Woodley ought to have an extra 10p per period while the rest of
the Borough will have evening and Sunday charges. At the start of the parking charges
fiasco the justification was based on benchmarking with other authorities, but now the
proposal is different between the towns.
At that meeting I asked a further question to ask why the Leader of the Council made the
comment “It is with deep regret that the Council has been forced to make these
proposals”. Make no mistake, nobody forced the Council to do this and nobody forced the
Council to make such a hash of it.
Lessons
Six months on from when these proposals were first made, what lessons can be learnt?







Ensure that all News Releases have links that work.
When proposals are made on controversial issues ensure information is provided as to
what alternatives have been considered and what research has been done.
Ensure that officers know the status of the proposal. The principle of evening and
Sunday charges has not yet been established.
Don’t discuss customer comments in such a cavalier way. Most organisations would
be pleased to get such a large response, some of which could be considered.
Know when the decision is going to be made.
How can a politically incompetent act (such as removing the “Free Parking” sign at
Shute End before a decision has been taken) be made without anyone knowing who
did it and why they did it?

I could go on, and there are many other issues, but let’s forget it for this year, and prepare
properly for next year when the Wokingham Town Centre Regeneration and Civil Parking
Enforcement will be further advanced.

27

This page is intentionally left blank

TITLE

Briefing Paper - Introduction of Evening, Sunday
and Shute End Charges

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee, 17th
May 2016

WARD

None specific

DIRECTOR

Heather Thwaites, Director of Environment

LEAD MEMBER

John Kaiser, Executive Member for Planning and
Highways

REASON FOR BRIEFING PAPER
Members are asked to consider the following as a response to the points raised in the
Call In of the Executive decision to introduce charges in Council owned car parks for
parking evenings, Sundays and at Shute End.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Executive decision to approve car park charges for evening and Sunday users
fulfils the requirements of the Council’s Constitution and is a sound decision.

29

Background
1. The Executive received a paper at its meeting in March 2016 to approve the
making of a traffic regulation order that would allow charges to be levied on users
of car parks on Sundays and evenings as well as at Shute End car park. In
addition the Executive was asked to approve the necessary changes to signs
and machines to facilitate the implementation of the order and responses to
consultation respondents.
2. The decision has been called in to the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee on the basis that it contravenes a number of sections of the Council’s
Constitution.
Response to the Call In
3. Officers do not believe that the decision contravenes section1.4.2a of the
Council’s constitution. (“proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to
the desired outcome)”).
4. The Council has a duty to maximise the income from its assets and attempts to
do this in as fair a way as possible. The desired outcome of introducing the new
charges is to ensure that all of the users of the Council’s assets (in this case car
parks) pay a proportionate amount towards the income generated from car parks
that is then used to fund transport improvements and maintenance across the
Borough.
5. The proposal is that users will pay £1 to park for any length of time between 6pm
and 8am and £1 to park for any length of time on a Sunday. At present only
weekday and Saturday users pay for use of the car parks.
6. Officers do not believe that the decision contravenes section1.4.2b of the
Council’s constitution (“due consultation and the taking of professional advice
from Officers”).
7. A comprehensive consultation was undertaken on the proposals. It was clear
from the consultation that the matter being consulted on was the introduction of a
charge and the level of that charge. It was clear from the responses received
that this is how the consultation was interpreted as many respondents
commented on the principle of the charge itself and not the quantum of the
charge.
8. Professional advice with regards to the proposal was taken from officers in the
highways and transport team, the legal services team and the regeneration team.
The matter was discussed at the Council’s corporate leadership team where all
departments of the Council are represented.
9. Officers do not believe that the decision contravenes section1.4.2d of the
Council’s constitution (“a presumption in favour of openness”).
10. The call in paper seems to suggest that in order to demonstrate openness
consultations should be advertised prior to publication. This is not common
practice and is not a part of the consultation guidance used to determine how

30

and when a consultation is carried out. The consultation was made widely
available as evidenced by the number of responses.
11. Officers do not believe that the decision contravenes section1.4.2e of the
Council’s constitution (“clarity of aims and desired outcomes”).
12. The aims of the proposal are clearly stated in the Executive paper.
The Outcome set out at the beginning of the paper states…“These proposed
charges will ensure that the Council’s off street car parks provide a best value
return on the asset”.
13. Officers do not believe that the decision contravenes section1.4.2f of the
Council’s constitution (“when decisions are taken by the Executive, details of the
options which were taken into account and the reasons for the decision will be
recorded.”).
14. This section of the constitution does not demand that options are assessed but
merely that where options have been assessed that they are detailed. The
reasons for the decision are set out in the minutes of the executive meeting.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.

It should be noted that the introduction of these charges is expected to raise £150,000
in revenue for the Council. This money will be used to provide improvements to the
road network and fund maintenance of the road network across the Borough. Without
this revenue the services provided within the team would have to be reduced.

How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall

Revenue or
Capital?

(£150,000)

N/A

N/A

(£150,000)

N/A

N/A

(£150,000)

N/A

N/A

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
The costs associated with introducing the charges and enforcing the charges have been
taken into account when providing this estimate of income.

31

Cross-Council Implications

List of Background Papers

Contact Matt Davey

Service Highways & Transport

Telephone No 0118 908 8304

Email matt.davey@wokingham.gov.uk

Date 4 May 2016

Version No. 1

32

Car Parks - Summary of Income and Expenditure 2015/16

Car Park
Station Road Car Park, Earley
Cockpit Path Car Park
Denmark Street Car Park
Easthampstead Road (East) Car Park
Easthampstead Road (West) Car Park
Rose Street Car Park
Lytham Road (East) Car Park
Lytham Road (West) Car Park
Crockhamwell Road Car Park
Headley Road Car Park
Polehampton Close Car Park, Twyford
School Lane Car Park
Averys Corner Car Park
The Paddocks Car Park

Actual
Expenditure
Actual Income General Fund
NET
661
(45,373)
7,888
(36,823)
1,548
(107,636)
18,581
(87,507)
1,751
(57,322)
8,064
(47,508)
3,081
(185,666)
40,843
(141,741)
1,311
(54,370)
9,992
(43,068)
1,975
(61,685)
7,538
(52,173)
539
(60,592)
4,032
(56,021)
765
(41,329)
5,785
(34,779)
4,358
(208,454)
29,449
(174,647)
5,545
(249,529)
35,935
(208,048)
1,488
(38,062)
6,836
(29,737)
450
(8,137)
7,012
(676)
1,853
0
7,187
9,040
5,748
(222,107)
49,433
(166,926)

Note
Carnival Pool, Elms Road Multi Storey and Park and Ride Car Parks are not included as
they are part of separate management agreements/ownership.
The General Fund provision includes generic overheads such as depreciation and salaries
which are not easily allocated to individual car parks. The allocation is based on the size of
each car park.

33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 81.3
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
CALL IN MEETING – 17 MAY 2016 AT 7.30PM

Indicative List of Witnesses and Timetable
Item

Name/Role

Time

1

Councillor Tim Holton (Chairman) opens the meeting and explains the
structure for considering Call Ins

7.30 – 7.35

2

Councillor Lindsay Ferris explains the reasons for the Call In
Committee Members question Councillor Ferris

7.35 – 7.45
7.45 – 7.55

3

Richard Dolinski (witness) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Mr Dolinski

7.55 – 8.00
8.00 – 8.05

4

Keith Malvern (witness) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Mr Malvern

8.05 – 8.10
8.10 – 8.15

5

Peter Must (witness) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Mr Must

8.15 – 8.20
8.20 – 8.25

6

Matt Davey (Head of Highways) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Mr Davey

8.25 – 8.30
8.30 – 8.35

7

Councillor John Kaiser (Executive Member) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Councillor Kaiser

8.35 – 8.40
8.40 – 8.45

8

Councillor Keith Baker (Leader of the Council) addresses the Committee
Committee Members question Councillor Baker

8.45 – 8.50
8.50 – 8.55

9

Andrew Moulton (Monitoring Officer) and Mary Severin (Borough Solicitor)
answer any legal/procedural questions from Committee Members

8.55 – 9.00

10

Summary Session – witnesses provide clarification in relation to points
raised by other speakers/witnesses

9.00 – 9.15

11

Conclusions – Committee discusses the written and verbal evidence and
considers any appropriate recommendations

9.15 – 9.40

12

Councillor Tim Holton (Chairman) closes the meeting

9.40pm

Notes:
1
2

The Chairman may decide to invite further witnesses and amend the timings.
Written submissions will be considered during the relevant part of the meeting.

35

This page is intentionally left blank

